
 
 
                   

                          
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     

Memo   
To: Commission Members 

From: Alexander Khu 

Date: Monday April 6, 2015 

Re: April 6, 2015 Commission Meeting 
 

Enclosed are the materials for the April 6, 2015 Commission meeting which will take place as 
follows: 
 

Time:  6:00 pm 
 
Location: 1485 Civic Court Suite 1200, Concord, CA 
  925-771-7300 

 
A light dinner will be provided. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Kind Regards, 

Alexander Khu, Executive Assistant 
First 5 Contra Costa 
1485 Civic Court  
Suite 1200 
Concord, CA 94520 
925-771-7342 Direct 
925-771-6083 Fax 

 

 

 



   

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520  •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.firstfivecc.org 

COMMISSION MEETING 
Agenda 

 
Monday, April 6, 2015, 6:00 pm 

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200 
Large Conference Room  

Concord, CA 
 

1.0 Call to Order and Roll Call  
   
2.0 Public Comment  

The public may comment on any item of public interest within the jurisdiction of the First 5 Contra Costa 
Children and Families Commission.  In accordance with the Brown Act, if a member of the public addresses an 
item not on the posted agenda, no response, discussion, or action on the item may occur. 

 

   
3.0 Approval of Consent Calendar 

A Commissioner or member of the public may ask that any of the following consent items be removed from 
the consent calendar for consideration under Item 4. 
 

Action 

 3.1 Approve the minutes from the February 2, 2015 Commission meeting.    
    
 3.2 Accept the Executive Committee Report from the February 2, 2015 meeting.  
    
4.0 Consider for discussion any items removed from the consent calendar. 

 
 

5.0 Public Hearing on the First 5 California 2013-14 Annual Report  
 The report may be found online at: 

http://www.ccfc.ca.gov/pdf/annual_report_pdfs/Annual_Report_13-14.pdf 
 

 

 5.1 Consider accepting the First 5 California 2013-14 Annual Report 
 

Action 

6.0 Public Hearing on the First 5 Contra Costa 2010-2015 Strategic Plan   
 The Strategic Plan may be found at: 

http://www.firstfivecc.org/index.php?page=strategic-plan 
 

 

 6.1 Consider extending the current, 2010-2015 Strategic Plan for a sixth year, 
through June 30, 2016. 
 

Action 

7.0 Considering approving the proposed First 5 Contra Costa budget for Fiscal Year 2015-
2016 
 

Action 

8.0 Update on strategic planning activities and preparation for the May 13, 2015 strategic 
planning retreat 

 

   
9.0 Executive Director’s Report  
   
10.0 Communications   
 • First 5 Association of CA Handouts from the February State Summit  

AGENDA 
Monday, April 6, 2015 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 

http://www.ccfc.ca.gov/pdf/annual_report_pdfs/Annual_Report_13-14.pdf
http://www.firstfivecc.org/index.php?page=strategic-plan


   

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520  •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.firstfivecc.org 

   
11.0 Commissioner F.Y.I. Updates   
   
12.0 Adjourn  

 
 

 

The First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to participate in 
Commission meetings who contact the Commission’s offices, at least 48 hours before the meeting, at (925) 771-7300. 
 
Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the First 5 Contra Costa Children and 
Families Commission to a majority of members of the First 5 Contra Costa Children and Families Commission less than 96 hours prior to that meeting are 
available for public inspection at 1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520 during normal business hours. 
 
In consideration of those who may suffer from chemical sensitivities or who may have allergic reactions to heavy scents, First 5 Contra Costa requests that 
staff and visitors refrain from wearing perfume, cologne, or the use of strongly scented products in the work place.  We thank you for your consideration of 
others. 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
Monday, April 6, 2015 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Monday April 6, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3.1 
 

Approve the minutes from the February 2, 2015 meeting. 
 
 
 

 
 



   

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520  •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.firstfivecc.org 

COMMISSION MINUTES 
Special Meeting 

 
Monday, February 2, 2015, 6:00 pm 

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200 
Large Conference Room  

 Concord, CA 
 
 

1.0 Call to Order and Roll Call 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:08 pm. 
 
PJ Shelton welcomed new officers Vice Chair Kathy Gallagher and Secretary-Treasurer Gareth Ashley. 
 
Commissioners in attendance were: 
Chair PJ Shelton, Kathy Gallagher, Gareth Ashley, Maria Fort, John Jones, Dr. William Walker, and Alternate 
Commissioner Joan Miller for the Director of Children & Families Services. 
 
Alternates present were: 
Belinda Lucey, Wanda Session, and Katharine Mason. 
 
Also present were County Counsel representatives Keiko Kobayashi and Mary Ann Mason. 
  
Absent: Supervisor Candace Andersen and Supervisor Karen Mitchoff, Commissioner Barbara Cappa, and 
Alternates Matt Regan and Toni Robertson. 
 

 

2.0 Public Comment  

 
Shelter Inc. Executive Director Tim O Keefe reported that the Mountain View Family Shelter in 
Martinez remains at full capacity. He also announced that former Director of Program Services 
Jennifer Baha retired after over 24 years of service. He also informed that the Shelter Inc. office will 
soon be moving to Concord sometime in March 2015. 
 

 

3.0 Approval of Consent Calendar 
 
Motion was made by John Jones to approve the consent calendar. Seconded by Gareth Ashley. 
 

AYES:  PJ Shelton, Kathy Gallagher, Gareth Ashley, Maria Fort, John Jones, William Walker, Joan 
Miller and Belinda Lucey for Barbara Cappa. 
 
NOES: None 
 
ABSTENTION: None 
 

The motion was APPROVED. 
 

 

Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, February 2, 2015 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 



   

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520  •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.firstfivecc.org 

5.0 Presentation of Conflict of Interest laws pertinent to Commissioners and staff  
  

Assistant County Counsel, Mary Ann Mason made her annual presentation to the Commission updating and 
clarifying new items with regards to their responsibility in disclosure and reasons and processes of recusal, 
and reviewed the Political Reform Act Government Code Section 1090 and case law that addresses the 
appearance of conflict of interest. 
 
After the presentation, she addressed questions from the commissioners with matters pertaining to when, 
or how to disclose.  
 

 

6.0 Presentation of Bay Area and Contra Costa efforts to reduce poverty: “Rise Together” and “Ensuring 
Opportunity” 

 

  
There were two presentations made. 
 
First, Sean Casey introduced Christina Arrostuto, Executive Director of RISE TOGETHER. She made a slide 
presentation outlining the work of the 21-member Steering Council of Bay Area leaders from various sectors 
that has launched a range of strategic activities, engaged the initiative’s members, and established the 
organization’s structure.   
 
Sean Casey followed with a slide presentation about Ensuring Opportunity: 
 
Ensuring Opportunity’s effort represents more than 100 public and private agencies and 50 congregations 
that collectively serve Contra Costa residents. He noted that half of the residents in the county live below the 
self-sufficiency standard. In 2014, 12.5% of Contra Costa residents lived below the federal poverty level for a 
family of four, $28,850, with 14.9% of children below the FPL. He noted that although direct services are 
essential to address the impact of poverty, it is not enough to end poverty. He suggested the need for public 
policies that address poverty at the root causes by providing families with high-quality early childhood 
education and higher education, self-sufficiency wages, housing that is affordable, health care, quality food, 
and more. 
 
Sean thanked First 5’s Special Projects Coordinator Fran Biderman for her dedicated work in helping to form 
and support the Campaign Leadership Team. For more information: http://www.cutpovertycc.org. 
 

 

7.0 Consider naming First 5 Contra Costa as a “partner” in the Rise Together initiative  
  

A motion was made by Maria Fort to name First 5 Contra Costa as a “partner” in the RISE TOGETHER 
initiative. Motion was seconded by Gareth Ashley. 
 

AYES:  PJ Shelton, Kathy Gallagher, Gareth Ashley, Maria Fort, John Jones, William Walker, Joan 
Miller and Belinda Lucey for Barbara Cappa. 
 
NOES: None 
 
ABSTENTION: None 
 

The motion was APPROVED. 
 

 

Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, February 2, 2015 

Page 2 of 4 
 

 

http://www.cutpovertycc.org/


   

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520  •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.firstfivecc.org 

8.0 Presentation of the Alameda and Contra Costa plan to expand “Help Me Grow.”  
  

First 5 Deputy Director Cally Martin made a slide show presentation of the Alameda and Contra Costa plan to 
expand “Help Me Grow”. 
 
She explained that the Help Me Grow is system that can help children reach their optimal development by 
Kindergarten. This aligns with the mission of First 5, and ensures children receive the services and support 
needed at an early stage. 
 
HMG is currently in 23 U.S. states and territories. In California, there are 8 counties (including Contra Costa) 
that are now HMG affiliates and an additional 15 are in development. The foundation of HMG is in 
promoting regular developmental screening for all children 0-5 by trained providers using a standardized, 
comprehensive tool. Both the Contra Costa and Alameda First 5s have been working on building an 
integrated, effective system of care that will allow developmental concerns to be addressed at the earliest 
point in time and enables children to gain timely access to local resources. Cally informed the Commission 
that the Thomas J. Long Foundation would soon award a major grant to First 5 Contra Costa and First 5 
Alameda to expand HMG in the region.  
 
Wanda Session asked if there were ways to help parents navigate access to the right resources for their 
children. 
 
Cally informed that there are call center staff trained to provide this service. Early Intervention Program 
Officer Wanda Davis said the Contra Costa Crisis Center (211.org) has staff in place to handle parents’ 
questions and concerns regarding their children’s developmental issues.  
 
Dr. Walker asked if HMG had been in contact yet with representatives from the Contra Costa Health plan as 
Developmental Screening is funded partially by the state, especially for Autism Spectrum issues. 
 
Wanda Davis said we are currently in dialog on establishing HMG with the CC Health Plan. 
 

 

9.0 Executive Director’s Report  
  

Sean Casey reported the following: 
First 5 California’s Summit on Child Health Education and Care is next week. There are five Commissioners 
attending the pre-Summit County Commissioner session and a few staying for the Summit itself. There are 
two sessions being presented by Contra Costa staff and providers. 
 
Wednesday May 13, 2015 is the Commissioners’ Strategic Planning Retreat.  Over the holidays First 5 Contra 
Costa brought on some consultant support to help in the preparations. Nicole Young, the owner and 
principal of Optimal Solutions Consulting, has provided similar assistance to Santa Clara, Santa Cruz and San 
Mateo First 5s. Over the next couple of months we will be holding some small stakeholder sessions for input 
on various aspects of our work, and Nicole will be carrying out some key informant interviews as well. 
 
In addition to the anticipated funding for Help Me Grow, we have other funding news. Cally Martin and 
Edirle Menezes have been working closely with staff at the County Office of Education on an application due 
Wednesday to the California Department of Education for the “QRIS block grants” authorized in this year’s 
state budget. Of the $50 million available for the state, Contra Costa is eligible to receive close to $1.5 
million. Most of the funds will be passed on to providers, with some held for QRIS activities jointly carried 

 

Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, February 2, 2015 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 



   

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 94520  •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.firstfivecc.org 

out by CCCOE and First 5. This marks what we believe will be a new standard of reimbursement for high-
quality providers that will make implementing state preschool more financially viable. 
 
On Saturday, January 31, 2015, Sean Casey attended a West County Regional Group event in San Pablo with 
the City staff, organizing the significant amount of data collected by the West County Regional Group 
regarding the conditions of the City’s parks. The data will help the city prioritize its park improvement 
activities. John Jones, who had previously worked with the City of Antioch on its parks, commended the 
Community Engagement program for their collaborative efforts. 

 
Sean Casey thanked Commissioners and Alternates ( Barbara Cappa, Mister Phillips, PJ Shelton, Belinda 
Lucey, John Jones, Katharine Mason, Maria Fort) who all signed up for site visits. 
 

10.0 Adoption of the 2015 Commission meeting calendar  
  

A motion was made by Kathy Gallagher to adopt the 2015 Commission meeting calendar. Dr. Walker 
seconded the motion. 

 
AYES:  PJ Shelton, Kathy Gallagher, Gareth Ashley, Maria Fort, John Jones, William Walker, Joan 
Miller and Belinda Lucey for Barbara Cappa. 
 
NOES: None 
 
ABSTENTION: None 
 

The motion was APPROVED. 
 

 

11.0 Communications  
 
Sean directed the Commission to recent articles in the packet.  
 

 

12.0 Commissioner F.Y.I. Updates   
  

There were no announcements from the Commissioners. 
 

 

13.0 Adjourn  
 
Chair PJ Shelton reminded the Commission that there will be no meeting in March. 
Next meeting will be on Monday, April 6, 2015. 
Meeting was adjourned at 7:49 pm. 
 

 

 

Commission Meeting Minutes 
Monday, February 2, 2015 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Monday April 6, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 3.2 
 

Accept the Executive Committee Report from the February 2, 2015 meeting. 
 
 
 

 
 



 

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA  94520  •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.firstfivecc.org 

 
Executive Committee  

MINUTES 
  

February 2, 2015 
4:00 p.m.  

Small Conference Room, 
1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA 

  
1.0 
 

Call to Order 
Present: Commissioners PJ Shelton, Gareth Ashley; Alternate Commissioner Katharine 
Mason; Staff Sean Casey, Cally Martin, Marnie Huddleston, Shawn Garcia 
 
 

 

2.0 Public Comment 
There was none 
 
 

 

3.0 Staff Updates  
  

The California Department of Education has allowed us to extend our current Race to the 
Top contract through the 2015-16 fiscal year. We have submitted our request for a no-cost 
extension on this contract that otherwise would have ended in December. 
 
We will soon be submitting a joint application with the County Office of Education to the 
California Department of Education for the state QRIS Block Grant program. This funding 
was established last year to support quality improvement efforts in the California State 
Preschool Program. The grant amount for the first year is $1,470,062.  This amount will vary 
in future years depending on the number of counties participating.  As more counties 
establish their own local QRIS, the smaller the amount of overall grants. When all are in, the 
amount locally should be closer to $1.2M. 
 
The TJ Long Foundation has indicated (verbally) that they intend to provide a grant to 
support expansion of our implementation of HMG – the grant will likely be for $5m for the 
first 2 years and an additional $5m allocated for the 2nd two years (over two counties). 
 
The West County Regional Group, First 5, and Healthy and Active Before 5 conducted a 
community parks workshop January 31st in San Pablo.  The workshop was attended by 
approximately 50 community members and various city representatives, including law 
enforcement, parks and recreation, public works, councilmembers and the City Manager.  
They analyzed the park survey data from our assessment in October and begin drafting 
preliminary recommendations for park improvements. 
 
The second phase of the Kaiser-funded Monument HEAL project (2015-2017) was launched 
in January.  The Central County Regional Group and First 5 are named as subcontractor 
partners to continue implementing the park improvement and Sugar Bites projects.  The 
CCRG will lead the parks work and partner with other HEAL efforts, including the 
bike/pedestrian plan and tap water promotion efforts.  First 5 will receive $21,000 per year 
for two years from Kaiser Permanente for their work on this project. 
 
We have a new employee, Carolina Florez, who wil be taking up the Program Assistant 
position for the Community Engagement program. 

 

Executive Committee 
Agenda 

February 2, 2015 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 



 

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA  94520  •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.firstfivecc.org 

 
4.0 Commission Updates  
 The Alternate Commissioner position for District 3 (Piepho) remains vacant. Hiring for the 

new Child Welfare Director is ongoing. 
 

 

5.0 Statewide Updates 
The statewide First 5 Summit is coming up in February. There will be a pre-summit session 
for county commissioners; from Contra Costa we have Commission members Shelton, 
Ashley, Gallegher, Jones, Session, and Phillips set to attend. 
 
Sean was elected Vice President of the California First 5 Association at the January 
Association meeting. Participation on the Association’s Executive Committee is a great 
opportunity keep up with statewide policy activities as well as to help shape First 5’s policy 
stance on issues affecting children. 
 

 

6.0 Items for Consideration 
6.1 Review and discuss preparation of the 2015-16 budget 
 
Sean reviewed the major aspects of the budget for the coming year and asked for the 
Committee’s feedback.  
 
The coming year will see the end of the Long Foundation’s grant for Preschool Makes a 
Difference, the federal/state grant for Race to the Top, and the California First 5-funded 
CARES program. 
 
The will likely be new revenue, still to be confirmed, from the Long Foundation for Help Me 
Grow expansion, from First 5 California for a new ECE quality initiative, and from the 
Department of Education for local preschool quality efforts.  
 
We will see a drop in our retirement contribution of about 5% resulting in a savings of 
approximately $50,000. 
 
Sean presented the history of staff COLAs over the last several years. After several years 
of no COLAs, the COLAs approved by the Commission in recent years have largely been 
offset by annual increases in employee retirement costs. The Executive Committee 
recommended a 3% increase for the 2015-16 budget. 
 
There are nine program contractors that have not received a contract adjustment in recent 
years, mostly because they were locked in to contract amounts set in multi-year 
arrangements. These include the First 5 Centers and the home visiting contractors. The 
Committee recommended they receive a 4% contract increase in the coming year. 
 
6.2 Review and discuss process for completing the Commission’s FY 2016-20 
Strategic Plan  
 
Sean Casey reviewed the work on stakeholder input for the strategic plan. Two stakeholder 
meetings are scheduled for February as well as key informant interviews and a Commission 
survey. Nicole Young, our strategic planning consultant, will meet with the Executive 
Committee at its April meeting to go over the plan for the Commission retreat. 
 
6.2 Review and discuss process for Executive Director annual performance review 
Last year the Executive Committee shifted to a spring cycle for the performance review, 
with the goal of completing the process at the July Commission meeting. Administrative 

 

Executive Committee 
Agenda 

February 2, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 



 

1485 Civic Court, Suite 1200, Concord, CA  94520  •  925.771.7300  •  fax 925.771.6083  •  www.firstfivecc.org 

Manager Shawn Garcia reviewed the process with the Committee and provided materials 
for their use.  
 
 

7.0 Review agenda items for upcoming Commission meetings  
At the April meeting: Public hearings on our current strategic plan and CA F5’s annual 
report; approve the 2015-16 budget. 
 

 

8.0 Adjourn  
 

 

 
 

Executive Committee 
Agenda 

February 2, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 



 
 
 
 

Monday April 6, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5.0 
 

Public Hearing on the First 5 California 2013-14 Annual Report 
 
 
 

 
 



Staff report Public Hearing on the First 5 CA 2012-13 Annual Report.docx; SC; printed 4/2/2015 
1 

Staff Report 
April 6, 2015

ACTION: X 

DISCUSSION: 

TITLE: Public Hearing on the First 5 California 2013-14 Annual Report

Introduction: 
First 5 California prepares an annual report each year, based in part on fiscal, program and 
participant information provided by each of the 58 county commissions. County commissions 
are required by statute to hold an annual public hearing on First 5 California’s annual report. 
The report may be found online at: 
http://www.ccfc.ca.gov/pdf/annual_report_pdfs/Annual_Report_13-14.pdf

A short summary of Contra Costa program highlights appears on page 33.

http://www.first5california.com/pdf/annual_report_pdfs/Annual_Report_12-13.pdf


 
 
 
 

Monday April 6, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6.0 
 

Public Hearing on the First 5 Contra Costa 2010-2015 Strategic Plan 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 

Staff Report 
April 6, 2015 

 
 

ACTION:  X 
DISCUSSION:   

 
 
TITLE: Public Hearing on the First 5 Contra Costa 2010-2015 Strategic Plan 
 
Introduction: 
Each year, the Commission holds a public hearing on its strategic plan, as required by 
statute. 
 
Background: 
The Commission adopted its 2010-2015 Strategic Plan in October 2009. With the exception 
of contingency planning in the wake of AB 99 (which was invalidated in the courts), the 
Commission has remained on course since then to maintain its programs at a consistent 
level through the five-year period.  
 
At the October, 2014 Commission meeting staff proposed to extend the current plan by one 
year, to allow time to complete the work for the next strategic plan. As a result, staff have 
prepared a budget for the next year that is based on the 2014-15 budget, with reductions 
where possible, but overall in line with the current plan.  
 
The Commission will meet in May at its Strategic Plan Retreat to work on the 2015-20 plan. 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommend that the Commission extend the current, 2010-2015 strategic plan for a 
sixth year, through June 30, 2016.  
 

06.0 Staff report 2015 Public Hearing on the First 5 CC 2010-2015 SP.docx; SC; printed 4/2/2015 
 1 



 
 
 
 

Monday April 6, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7.0 
 

Consider approving the proposed First 5 Contra Costa budget for Fiscal Year 
2015-2016 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 

Staff Report 
April 6, 2015 

 
 

ACTION:  X 
DISCUSSION:   

 
 
TITLE: Proposed First 5 Contra Costa Budget, FY 2015-16 
 
Introduction 
 
The FY2015-16 budget represents “year six” of the Commission’s 2010-15 Strategic Plan, 
serving as a bridge to the new plan the Commission will approve later in 2016. The FY2015-
16 budget is based on the FY 2014-15 budget with a few alterations, described below. 
Overall, even with increased outside funding, the $14,639,055 budget is $1.37 million less 
than its predecessor, with budgeted savings of First 5 funds of $1.7 million.  
 
Summary 
Particular features of the FY2015-16 budget include the following: 
 
Revenue:  
 
• Projected Proposition 10 tax revenue is 1.8% less than the previous year’s projection.  

 
• New revenue includes the first year of the ongoing California State Preschool (CSPP) 

block grant ($482,760) and the first year of a two-year Thomas J. Long Foundation grant 
to expand Help Me Grow ($1.16 million). 
 

• The 2015-16 fiscal year will be the final year for California Department of Education Race 
to the Top funding ($619,167) and the California First 5 CARES Plus grant for early 
educator professional development ($300,000).    

 
• The Thomas J. Long Foundation grant for Preschool Makes a Difference scholarships 

($990,000 in the current year) expires at the end of the current fiscal year. 
 

• The budget calls for using up to $3.8 million of the Commission’s fund balance to make 
up the difference between revenue and expenditures; this use of the fund balance 
continues the drawdown anticipated in the Commission’s strategic planning.  

 
 
Program:  
 
• The Executive Committee recommends that eleven annual program contracts that have 

not had an increase during the past three years receive a 4% increase. Cost: $106,775.  
 

07.0 Staff report FY 2015-16 budget proposal.docx; SC, MH; printed 4/2/2015 1 



 
 

• The reduction of the Early Learning Quality line (line 14) principally reflects the end of the 
Preschool Makes a Difference scholarships.  
 

• The reduction of funds for mental health therapeutic services (line 23) reflects the new 
agreement with Costa Contra Health Services–Behavioral Health allowing for the 
continuation of wraparound services in children’s mental health programs without the 
need for First 5 funds. Historically, First 5 funds in these programs were chronically 
underutilized; the provider contracts will continue to be supported by the County at their 
levels. First 5 will provide small flexible funding accounts directly to each provider to 
support families in crisis.  

 
• The increase in Children’s Developmental Needs (line 25) reflects the new Long 

Foundation funding to expand Help Me Grow. 
 

• The reduction in Children at Risk of Stress or Trauma (line 26) reflects an agreement 
similar to that for Therapeutic Services in which Costa Contra Health Services–
Behavioral Health will continue funding for the Next Steps program supporting children of 
women in residential substance use treatment, without the need of First 5 funds. First 5 
will provide a small flexible funding account directly to the provider. 

 
• Public Information (line 30) activities will include public awareness campaigns to promote 

quality early learning and Help Me Grow, both supported by grant funds.  
 

• Additional Race to the Top, Long HMG and CSPP funds are to program salaries and 
benefits (line 34) for three new positions: a QRIS coach coordinator, and a coordinator 
and program assistant for the Help Me Grow program.  These positions are funded 
entirely with grant funds. Cost: $304,000.   

 
 
 
Wages and Benefits 
• A 3% cost of living increase for staff is recommended by the Executive Committee, based 

on the Bay Area consumer price index for the last 12 months. The increase would go into 
effect July 1, 2015. Cost: $86,000. 

 
• The Commission’s retirement contribution rate decreased from 34.32% to 29.26% of 

payroll. The prepayment on the Commission’s UAAL obligation reduced retirement costs 
by $95,500. With added staff in the coming year, the Commission’s retirement cost 
remains nearly unchanged. Cost:  $599,191. 

 
• Health benefits increased due to a projected 5.75% increase in health plan premiums, 

additional staff, and staff changes in participation and plan preference. Cost: $342,626 
 
 
Evaluation Costs 
Evaluation increased as $83,000 of evaluation components previously in program budgets 
were moved into the evaluation budget. Overall evaluation costs equal 6.8% of total budget.   
 

07.0 Staff report FY 2015-16 budget proposal.docx; SC, MH; printed 4/2/2015 2 



 
 

Administrative Costs 
Administrative cost savings were made across all categories. Overall administration costs 
increased slightly to 8.7% of total budget as total program costs decreased.   
 
 
Recommendation: 
That the Commission approve the proposed First 5 Contra Costa Budget for FY 2015-16. 
 

07.0 Staff report FY 2015-16 budget proposal.docx; SC, MH; printed 4/2/2015 3 



F:\Commission\1 Commission Meetings\06.0 April 6, 2015\MATERIALS\07.1 Proposed FY1516 Summary Budget Commission 4-6-15.xlsx

 4/6/2015

FY14/15
Total Budget 

FY 15/16
First 5 CC Funds

FY 15/16
Other Funds

FY15/16
Total Budget 

Year to Year 
Variance

REVENUE
1    Prop 10 - Tax Apportionment 8,154,941 8,001,894 8,001,894 (153,047)            
2    First 5 California CARES Plus 300,000 - 300,000 300,000 - 
3    Race to the Top 737,664 - 619,167 619,167 (118,497)            
4    Ca State Preschool Programs - - 482,760 482,760 482,760             
5    Thomas J Long Foundation PMD 990,000 - - - (990,000)            
6    Thomas J Long Foundation HMG - - 1,158,953 1,158,953 1,158,953          
7    Interest Income 120,000 120,000 120,000 - 
8    MHSA Grant/Other Income 81,050 - 102,050 102,050 21,000               
9    Fund Balance Drawdown 5,628,482 3,854,231 3,854,231 (1,774,251)         
10 TOTAL REVENUE   16,012,137 11,976,125 2,662,930 14,639,055 (1,373,082)         

PROGRAM EXPENSES
11 Initiatives 11,358,220 7,727,311 1,967,086 9,694,397 (1,663,823)         
12    Early Care and Education Initiative
13       Professional Development 1,219,800 919,800 285,000 1,204,800 (15,000)              
14       Early Learning Quality 2,059,000 64,000 615,638 679,638 (1,379,362)         
15       Literacy 256,080 262,080 262,080 6,000 
16 Total 3,534,880 1,245,880 900,638 2,146,518 (1,388,362)         
17    Family Support - 
18      First 5 Centers 2,321,007 2,337,168 6,050 2,343,218 22,211               
19      Home Visiting 1,388,209 1,402,543 1,402,543 14,334               
20      Training and Consultation 64,200 25,200 25,200 (39,000)              
21 Total 3,773,416 3,764,911 6,050 3,770,961 (2,455) 
22    Early Intervention
23      Mental Health Therapeutic Services 909,638 113,755 75,000 188,755 (720,883)            
24      ECE Consultation 993,177 993,177 993,177 - 
25      Children's Developmental Needs 663,733 479,468 684,648 1,164,116 500,383             
26      Children at Risk of Stress or Trauma 784,290 515,706 515,706 (268,584)            
27      Training and Consultation 25,000 25,000 25,000 - 
28 Total 3,375,838 2,127,106 759,648 2,886,754 (489,084)            
29    Community Information and Education
30       Public Information 524,086 439,414 300,000 739,414 215,328             
31       Community Engagement 140,000 140,000 750 140,750 750 
32       Family Economic Stability 10,000 10,000 10,000 - 
33 Total 674,086 589,414 300,750 890,164 216,078             

34 Program Expenses 
35       Program Salaries & Wages 1,343,735 1,232,467 382,336 1,614,803 271,068             
36       Program Employee Benefits 817,766 667,975 135,177 803,152 (14,614)              
37       Overhead Expenses 231,607 252,616 252,616 21,009               
38 Total 2,393,108 2,153,058 517,513 2,670,571 277,463

39 TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES   13,751,328 9,880,369 2,484,599 12,364,968 (1,386,360)

EVALUATION EXPENSES
40    Evaluation Salaries & Wages 338,318 311,926 33,085 345,011 6,693 
41    Evaluation Employee Benefits 212,971 159,441 18,196 177,637 (35,334)              
42    Professional Services 306,000 365,286 45,000 410,286 104,286             
43    Purchased Services and Supplies 21,546 27,596 27,596 6,050 
44    Office Overhead  and Other Expenses 38,987 36,155 36,155 (2,832) 
45 TOTAL EVALUATION EXPENSES   917,822 900,404 96,281 996,685 78,863               

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
46   Administrative Salaries & Wages 562,956 549,748 52,935 602,683 39,727               
47   Administrative Employee Benefits 351,677 272,444 29,115 301,559 (50,118)              
48   Professional Services 135,500 119,750 119,750 (15,750)              
49   Purchased Services, Equipment lease, supplies 202,839 174,927 174,927 (27,912)              
50   Overhead Expenses 90,015 78,483 78,483 (11,532)              
51 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES   1,342,987 1,195,352 82,050 1,277,402 (65,585)              

52 GRAND TOTAL   16,012,137 11,976,125 2,662,930 14,639,055 (1,373,082)

FY15/16 budget % by area: Program 84.5%
Evaluation 6.8%

Administrative 8.7%
100%

Proposed FY15/16 Budget



 
 
 
 

Monday April 6, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10.0 
 

Communications: 
 

• First 5 Association of California Handouts from the February 2015 State 
Summit 
 
 
 

 
 












	Blank Page
	03.1 Approve the Minutes from February 2, 2015meeting.pdf
	Monday April 6, 2015
	Agenda Item 3.1

	Blank Page
	03.2 Accept the Executive Committee Report from February 2, 2015meeting.pdf
	Monday April 6, 2015
	Agenda Item 3.2

	Blank Page
	03.2 Exec Comm Minutes Feb 2 2015.pdf
	February 2, 2015
	4:00 p.m. 
	Public Comment
	Staff Updates
	Commission Updates



	Statewide Updates
	Adjourn 


	05.0 Public Hearing on the First 5 California 2013-14 Annual Report.pdf
	Monday April 6, 2015
	Agenda Item 5.0

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	06.0 Public Hearing on the First 5 Contra Costa 2010-2015 Strategic Plan.pdf
	Monday April 6, 2015
	Agenda Item 6.0

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	07.0 Consider approving proposed F5CC Budget FY 2015-16.pdf
	Monday April 6, 2015
	Agenda Item 7.0

	Blank Page
	10.0 Communications.pdf
	Monday April 6, 2015
	Agenda Item 9.0

	06.0 Staff report 2015 Public Hearing on the First 5 CC 2010-2015 SP.pdf
	Staff Report
	April 6, 2015
	TITLE: Public Hearing on the First 5 Contra Costa 2010-2015 Strategic Plan
	Introduction:
	Each year, the Commission holds a public hearing on its strategic plan, as required by statute.
	Background:
	The Commission adopted its 2010-2015 Strategic Plan in October 2009. With the exception of contingency planning in the wake of AB 99 (which was invalidated in the courts), the Commission has remained on course since then to maintain its programs at a ...
	At the October, 2014 Commission meeting staff proposed to extend the current plan by one year, to allow time to complete the work for the next strategic plan. As a result, staff have prepared a budget for the next year that is based on the 2014-15 bud...
	The Commission will meet in May at its Strategic Plan Retreat to work on the 2015-20 plan.
	Recommendation:
	Staff recommend that the Commission extend the current, 2010-2015 strategic plan for a sixth year, through June 30, 2016.

	07.0 Staff report FY 2015-16 budget proposal.pdf
	Staff Report
	April 6, 2015
	TITLE: Proposed First 5 Contra Costa Budget, FY 2015-16
	Introduction
	The FY2015-16 budget represents “year six” of the Commission’s 2010-15 Strategic Plan, serving as a bridge to the new plan the Commission will approve later in 2016. The FY2015-16 budget is based on the FY 2014-15 budget with a few alterations, descri...
	Summary
	Particular features of the FY2015-16 budget include the following:
	URevenueU:
	 Projected Proposition 10 tax revenue is 1.8% less than the previous year’s projection.
	 New revenue includes the first year of the ongoing California State Preschool (CSPP) block grant ($482,760) and the first year of a two-year Thomas J. Long Foundation grant to expand Help Me Grow ($1.16 million).
	 The 2015-16 fiscal year will be the final year for California Department of Education Race to the Top funding ($619,167) and the California First 5 CARES Plus grant for early educator professional development ($300,000).
	 The Thomas J. Long Foundation grant for Preschool Makes a Difference scholarships ($990,000 in the current year) expires at the end of the current fiscal year.
	 The budget calls for using up to $3.8 million of the Commission’s fund balance to make up the difference between revenue and expenditures; this use of the fund balance continues the drawdown anticipated in the Commission’s strategic planning.
	UProgramU:
	 The Executive Committee recommends that eleven annual program contracts that have not had an increase during the past three years receive a 4% increase. Cost: $106,775.
	 The reduction of the Early Learning Quality line (line 13) principally reflects the end of the Preschool Makes a Difference scholarships.
	 The reduction of funds for mental health therapeutic services (line 22) reflects the new agreement with Costa Contra Health Services–Behavioral Health allowing for the continuation of wraparound services in children’s mental health programs without ...
	 The increase in Children’s Developmental Needs (line 24) reflects the new Long Foundation funding to expand Help Me Grow.
	 The reduction in Children at Risk of Stress or Trauma (line 25) reflects an agreement similar to that for Therapeutic Services in which Costa Contra Health Services–Behavioral Health will continue funding for the Next Steps program supporting childr...
	 Public Information (line 29) activities will include public awareness campaigns to promote quality early learning and Help Me Grow, both supported by grant funds.
	 Additional Race to the Top, Long HMG and CSPP funds are to program salaries and benefits (line 34) for three new positions: a QRIS coach coordinator, and a coordinator and program assistant for the Help Me Grow program.  These positions are funded e...
	UWages and Benefits
	 A 3% cost of living increase for staff is recommended by the Executive Committee, based on the Bay Area consumer price index for the last 12 months. The increase would go into effect July 1, 2015. Cost: $86,000.
	 The Commission’s retirement contribution rate decreased from 34.32% to 29.26% of payroll. The prepayment on the Commission’s UAAL obligation reduced retirement costs by $95,500. With added staff in the coming year, the Commission’s retirement cost r...
	 Health benefits increased due to a projected 5.75% increase in health plan premiums, additional staff, and staff changes in participation and plan preference. Cost: $342,626
	UEvaluation Costs
	Evaluation increased as $83,000 of evaluation components previously in program budgets were moved into the evaluation budget. Overall evaluation costs equal 6.8% of total budget.
	UAdministrative Costs
	Administrative cost savings were made across all categories. Overall administration costs increased slightly to 8.7% of total budget as total program costs decreased.
	Recommendation:
	That the Commission approve the proposed First 5 Contra Costa Budget for FY 2015-16.

	Blank Page
	07.1 Proposed FY1516 Summary Budget Commission 4-6-15.pdf
	Summary

	Blank Page
	03.2 Exec Comm Minutes Feb 2 2015.pdf
	February 2, 2015
	4:00 p.m. 
	Public Comment
	Staff Updates
	Commission Updates



	Statewide Updates
	Adjourn 


	10.0 Communications.pdf
	Monday April 6, 2015
	Agenda Item 10.0

	07.0 Staff report FY 2015-16 budget proposal.pdf
	Staff Report
	April 6, 2015
	TITLE: Proposed First 5 Contra Costa Budget, FY 2015-16
	Introduction
	The FY2015-16 budget represents “year six” of the Commission’s 2010-15 Strategic Plan, serving as a bridge to the new plan the Commission will approve later in 2016. The FY2015-16 budget is based on the FY 2014-15 budget with a few alterations, descri...
	Summary
	Particular features of the FY2015-16 budget include the following:
	URevenueU:
	 Projected Proposition 10 tax revenue is 1.8% less than the previous year’s projection.
	 New revenue includes the first year of the ongoing California State Preschool (CSPP) block grant ($482,760) and the first year of a two-year Thomas J. Long Foundation grant to expand Help Me Grow ($1.16 million).
	 The 2015-16 fiscal year will be the final year for California Department of Education Race to the Top funding ($619,167) and the California First 5 CARES Plus grant for early educator professional development ($300,000).
	 The Thomas J. Long Foundation grant for Preschool Makes a Difference scholarships ($990,000 in the current year) expires at the end of the current fiscal year.
	 The budget calls for using up to $3.8 million of the Commission’s fund balance to make up the difference between revenue and expenditures; this use of the fund balance continues the drawdown anticipated in the Commission’s strategic planning.
	UProgramU:
	 The Executive Committee recommends that eleven annual program contracts that have not had an increase during the past three years receive a 4% increase. Cost: $106,775.
	 The reduction of the Early Learning Quality line (line 14) principally reflects the end of the Preschool Makes a Difference scholarships.
	 The reduction of funds for mental health therapeutic services (line 23) reflects the new agreement with Costa Contra Health Services–Behavioral Health allowing for the continuation of wraparound services in children’s mental health programs without ...
	 The increase in Children’s Developmental Needs (line 25) reflects the new Long Foundation funding to expand Help Me Grow.
	 The reduction in Children at Risk of Stress or Trauma (line 26) reflects an agreement similar to that for Therapeutic Services in which Costa Contra Health Services–Behavioral Health will continue funding for the Next Steps program supporting childr...
	 Public Information (line 30) activities will include public awareness campaigns to promote quality early learning and Help Me Grow, both supported by grant funds.
	 Additional Race to the Top, Long HMG and CSPP funds are to program salaries and benefits (line 34) for three new positions: a QRIS coach coordinator, and a coordinator and program assistant for the Help Me Grow program.  These positions are funded e...
	UWages and Benefits
	 A 3% cost of living increase for staff is recommended by the Executive Committee, based on the Bay Area consumer price index for the last 12 months. The increase would go into effect July 1, 2015. Cost: $86,000.
	 The Commission’s retirement contribution rate decreased from 34.32% to 29.26% of payroll. The prepayment on the Commission’s UAAL obligation reduced retirement costs by $95,500. With added staff in the coming year, the Commission’s retirement cost r...
	 Health benefits increased due to a projected 5.75% increase in health plan premiums, additional staff, and staff changes in participation and plan preference. Cost: $342,626
	UEvaluation Costs
	Evaluation increased as $83,000 of evaluation components previously in program budgets were moved into the evaluation budget. Overall evaluation costs equal 6.8% of total budget.
	UAdministrative Costs
	Administrative cost savings were made across all categories. Overall administration costs increased slightly to 8.7% of total budget as total program costs decreased.
	Recommendation:
	That the Commission approve the proposed First 5 Contra Costa Budget for FY 2015-16.




